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FOREWORD





ORDINARY BUILDINGS – everyday buildings – have for far too long passed unnoticed in Ireland. Plenty of attention has been given to the grander of the big houses, to the Early Christian churches, to the mediæval monasteries and friaries, and to castles of all epochs. Vernacular and thatched cottages have been appreciated: more admired, it must be said, than studied or conserved, though some people, and some counties, have a creditable record in this respect. But the buildings in between have been neglected. Neglected because not seen: not seen because not looked at. That which is familiar is for practical purposes invisible. How otherwise to account for the horrible things which people have done to inoffensive buildings in our towns and countryside?


Sean Rothery has been among the foremost of those who have helped to change this state of affairs, in a little pamphlet called Everyday Buildings in Ireland as long ago as 1975 (which he is too modest to mention in his bibliography but which is now a collector’s item), three years later in The Shops of Ireland, and all the time by keeping ordinary buildings in our sights by every means in his power.


The best way to do this is by a combination of succinct and clear descriptions with illustration. Photographs are all very well, and indeed indispensable. But the best way of all is by drawings, for only in a drawing can a building be shown as its designers and builders intended it to be seen. By his sensitivity of line and texture he has brought out latent qualities invisible to the casual eye.


Some of the buildings in this book are by known architects, but most are the work of anonymous builders and craftsmen who, thinking first of the practical uses the building was to serve, were none the less imbued with a grammar of design that extends both backwards and forwards in time. This book, like those of Patrick and Maura Shaffrey in 1983 and 1985, has appeared none too soon. We learn, in Sean Rothery’s Introduction, with sorrow but without surprise, that ‘most of the buildings illustrated still existed up to about 1993’, which means that a good few of them have, since then, been demolished, mutilated or allowed to fall into irrecoverable decay. The fabric of our towns and villages is so vulnerable that we cannot afford to let this continue.


But there are welcome signs of a change of heart. The old imperative – demolish first and think afterwards – is yielding to those of retain, reuse, adapt, revitalize. Private individuals, businesses, political parties and the organs of government are coming round to this way of thinking.


Most of these buildings went up when Ireland was less immediately open to external influences than it is now. Though pattern-books were the heralds of stylistic change, and components were occasionally imported (cast-iron from Glasgow, ceramics from Staffordshire), they were used in a locally idiosyncratic way, with a flavour all too easily destroyed by that faceless ‘multinational’ uniformity which now threatens us. The educated eye is the all-important thing and is our best defence. This is what Sean Rothery so persuasively provides.





MAURICE CRAIG


Dublin, 17 March 1997



















INTRODUCTION





THIS GUIDE attempts to identify the various types of buildings encountered in the towns, villages and countryside of Ireland. Its aim is to try to answer the questions “what is that building?” and “what was it for?” Buildings are identified by type and, where appropriate, sub-types are given. The groupings are general: for example, churches, castles, houses; buildings of the village and town; buildings of the great estate; buildings of industry and transport and, finally, the buildings of the coast.


A Field Guide to the Buildings of Ireland is largely concerned with the wealth of small “everyday” buildings of Ireland, the structures of ordinary folk-dwellings, workplaces, churches, schools and the other local symbols of administration and institution. The great works of architecture have generally been omitted (except where the historical development of churches, castles, houses etc. is described), the large country house and the monumental architecture of the city; all of these are well celebrated in specialist works listed at the end of the book. Each type of building is illustrated and its identifying features noted; its function is outlined and its place in the political, economic or social history of the times suggested. Architectural styles are described and terms explained in the glossary and, where appropriate, in the context of the drawing. Simple vernacular structures are included, alongside buildings designed by architects. A small number of architects whose work is especially significant are singled out and other examples of their work are mentioned. Regional locations, where some of the best examples of the various building types can be found, are also given.


Most of the buildings illustrated still existed up to about 1993. A smaller number were visited and still existed about fifteen years ago. Ordinary buildings, as many of these are, have little protection and can be demolished quickly for various reasons; redundancy, poor repair, valuable sites etc. Fortunately old buildings, no longer in use, tend to be left to die slowly in Ireland rather than suffer the quick death of demolition. Small communities are increasingly recognizing the potential value of retaining these relics of the past and finding new uses for them. Shops tend to have the shortest life and although there has been a revival in restoring and even replicating traditional shopfronts, individual examples can vanish overnight. The older castles and churches, particularly the National Monuments, are more assured of preservation but other everyday buildings of past generations need to be appreciated for their history and particularly for the wealth of beautiful stonework which is one of the great joys of historic Irish architecture.


The best maps for exploration are to be found in the new 1:50,000 series. The whole of Northern Ireland is covered by the “Discovery Series” and this overlaps with the border counties. The Republic of Ireland is to be totally mapped in this way and, up to the end of 1996, approximately forty-seven new 1:50,000 maps have been published, detailing the coasts, the mountains and scenic areas. A further twenty-four maps will complete the coverage of the whole island of Ireland at the rate of nine new maps each year.


Although the scale of these excellent new maps is rather large for car touring, the detail and tracing of the myriad small roads and laneways make them essential for the determined explorer of the Irish countryside. The antiquities – the buildings of pre-history – are marked on the maps, as are the early churches, monasteries and castles. Many of these are classed as National Monuments and are signposted from main roads. The churches, dating from post-mediæval times, are one of the most ubiquituous and interesting building types in Ireland and are marked with a black cross on the “Discovery Series”. The Northern Ireland maps differentiate between churches with towers, churches with spires and churches without either, offering interesting speculations about particular denominations.


These large-scale maps manage to show most individual buildings, at least outside the towns and villages, but different types of buildings are not noted. The older maps, at half an inch to the mile, while not totally accurate for all of the minor roads, nevertheless mark the antiquities, churches, castles and even country schoolhouses. The older maps also mark the locations of the larger estates.


The majority of the prehistoric sites, monasteries and castles are accessible to the public but in some cases the permission of the landowner must be sought before entering on the land. Many of the other buildings illustrated are privately owned but almost all can be viewed from a public roadway, particularly those in towns and villages. Many of the great estates are now in State ownership and have become forest or country parks, and the small estate buildings, follies, planned farms and gatelodges are often still there to be discovered and appreciated. Some houses are open to the public and the information on opening times etc. can be obtained from the local tourist office.


This is a book for the enthusiastic explorer, to be added to the diverse natural history field guides and to enlarge the potential, and enjoyment, of discovery in the long-inhabited land of Ireland.



















ACKNOWLEDGMENTS





I express my special thanks to the School of Irish Studies Foundation for a generous grant towards the research for this book.


Many people helped in one way or another towards the completion of the work. Scholarly information was supplied, puzzles solved, doors were opened and encouragement and support freely given.


My thanks to: Liam Boyce and John Clancy and Iarnród Éireann, Maurice Craig, Robert Fowler, David Griffin and the Irish Architectural Archive, Brendan Grimes, Dr Paul Larmour, Dr Edward McParland, Sean McQuaid and Bank of Ireland, Joseph Masterson, Adrian Rouiller, Niall Kerrigan and AIB, Sean and Rosemarie Mulcahy, Kevin B. Nowlan, Frederick O’Dwyer, Professor Roger Stalley, Jeremy Williams, Alex White.


I acknowledge also the scholarship of many writers in the field of Irish architectural studies, some of whose works are named in the reading list.


Finally, eternal gratitude to Nuala, with appreciation of her unique support. 



















CHURCHES


EARLY CHRISTIAN TO MEDIAEVAL





IRELAND, at the dawn of Christianity, was a land covered in forests and it seems likely that the first church structures were made of wood. No trace of any of these remain today but the first church buildings in stone probably date from at least the seventh century. The Early Christian Style, as it is known, is interesting in that it evolved in Ireland without any influence from the powerful tradition of Roman architecture, which prevailed in the rest of Western Europe. This style developed rather from the prehistoric forts and megaliths, and its small-scale, simple forms are unique.


Romanesque architecture in Ireland can be recognized by the arrival of the round-headed, Roman arch as distinct from the flat lintel used in the Early Christian phase. As the style developed, simple decorations, strongly carved in stone, embellished the arch and the jambs at the sides of the doorways. The later phases of the Romanesque saw an outburst of lavish carvings on rings of arches and on columns, caps and bases. The inward sloping sides of the door openings, known as a “batter” and already introduced in the Early Christian period, became more pronounced and helped to create a distinctive Irish identity for the Romanesque. The favoured ornament of the style in Europe was the chevron or zig-zag and this device, along with a deeply cut saw-tooth carving, became common for Irish church decoration. The most bizarre details, however, were the stone human heads and animal figures which enlivened many of the late stages of Irish Romanesque.


The Gothic style began in the Île de France about 1130 and reached its full flowering in the great cathedrals with their high soaring piers, intricate stone vaults and a skeleton of structure framing huge windows. Gothic in Ireland was a much more modest affair. Building to the heavens was not an ambition and later Irish mediæval churches remained relatively small, with little structural innovation. The round arch became pointed and the last phases of the style saw the appearance of a modestly elaborate stone tracery. The evolution from Romanesque was often gradual, with round-headed and pointed arches happily combined in the same building, forming something of a transitional style.


The Cistercian order is credited with the introduction of Gothic to Ireland and from about the end of the twelfth century to the dissolution of the monasteries in the mid-sixteenth century the Irish version of the style flourished. The picturesque ruins of the monastic foundations are plentiful and are as much part of the landscape in the peaceful Irish countryside today as the hills, lakes and rivers.
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Early Christian


GALLARUS ORATORY DINGLE CO. KERRY c.800 AD





[image: ]





THIS LITTLE oratory is one of the oldest surviving buildings of the Early Christian period, standing for over 1200 years. The structural method is to fit relatively small stones closely and carefully together without mortar, to form what is known as corbel construction. This technique, already known in Ireland for several thousand years and used in the great pre-historic burial chambers, involves placing each successive layer of stones to project slightly inwards until the last stones on each side meet at the top. Thus walls and roof are one. The most perfect use of the corbel technique was in the construction of the stone beehive cells of the early monasteries. The most spectacular of these is on the great 200-metre-high rock called Sceilg Mhicíl which stands out in the wild Atlantic, south-east of Valentia Island, Co. Kerry. The plan shape of the Gallarus oratory is rectangular but corbel construction is more stable when it takes a circular form. The built-in instability of the rectangular form has led to the collapse of most of the ancient oratories of Ireland. Gallarus is about six kilometres north-west of the town of Dingle. A semi-collapsed oratory of similar date can be found nearby, at Kilmalkedar.
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Stone-roofed churches


TEAMPULL BENIN INISHMORE ARAN ISLANDS CO. GALWAY c.10th c.



THE VERY early churches of Ireland are tiny structures with simple rectangular plans and steep stone roofs. Teampull Benin on the island of Inishmore, Aran, is only just over three metres long and two metres wide. Most of these little buildings date from the ninth to the tenth centuries. A favoured place for the building of an Early Christian church was a remote island even though this gave little protection from the Viking raiders. A lonely island gave the promise of peace and the means to live a life of austerity. Most of the islands all around the coast of Ireland and many islands in inland lakes have the remains of an early stone church or monastery. An intriguing feature of these little edifices was the use of huge stones for the walling, as can be seen in the side wall of Teampull Benin. This was hardly for reasons of economy since the hewing and placing of large blocks was more arduous than bonding many smaller stones. The ancient masons could be said to have been proud to demonstrate their skill and to delight in the unexpected, even the contradiction, of a giant block in a dwarf building.
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ST MC DARA’S ISLAND CARNA CO. GALWAY c.10th.



THE STONE roof of this early church has been recently restored, using the original stones found on the site. The projections on the gable ends are known as antae and are a feature of many of these early churches, which form a distinct sub-group. The use of antae has been attributed to a memory of earlier timber construction and possibly mirrors the early corner posts of the long-vanished churches in wood. A unique feature of St Mc Dara’s and a handful of others is the continuity of the antae up to the apex of the roof. This again is attributed to earlier timber construction – the “cruck” or bent-tree-pole method – where the poles or antae crossed over to form a finial. The stone finials were often carved and decorated. One of the finials survived at St Mc Dara’s and both have now been restored. St Mc Dara’s island is just off Carna, on the south Connemara coast. There are many early churches on the Aran islands and the best intact stone-roofed buildings are St Kevin’s, Glendalough, Co. Wicklow; St Flannan’s Oratory, Killaloe, Co. Clare, and St Columb’s House, Kells, Co. Meath. Some of the best-known Early Christian sites are at Glendalough, where there are many early churches and a magnificent round tower, at Clonmacnoise, Co. Offaly, Inishmurray, Co. Sligo, and Devenish, Co. Fermanagh.
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Irish Romanesque


ST CRONAN’S CHURCH ROSCREA CO. TIPPERARY 12th c.
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ONLY THE west gable façade survives of the church of St Cronan’s monastery at Roscrea, incongruously fronting a modern road. The church is twelfth century but retains a few features of the earlier style. Strong antae frame the façade and the original gable roof pitch was steeper, in the early Irish manner. The elevation is a carefully ordered one with a central Romanesque doorway and blind or blank arcades on each side. A powerful vertical effect was created by the steep gables over the arcades and the porch. Much of the ornament has been eroded away but this design had an effect on later Irish architecture, as will be seen subsequently. The most splendid and complete example of Irish Romanesque is Cormac’s Chapel in Cashel, Co. Tipperary – a building of quality which can rank equally with many Western European exercises in the style. This little masterpiece is stunningly situated, high up on the Rock of Cashel, although dwarfed by the later mediæval cathedral. The last phase of Irish Romanesque is well illustrated in St Saviour’s Priory at Glendalough, Co. Wicklow, and in the Nuns’ Church at Clonmacnoise. Splendid doorways are to be seen at Rahan, Co. Offaly, Killeshin, Co. Laois, and Kilmore, Co. Cavan.
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CLONFERT CATHEDRAL CO. GALWAY c.1160
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THE MOST spectacular Irish Romanesque doorway is at Clonfert, situated on the west bank of the river Shannon and about eight kilometres north-west of Banagher, Co. Offaly. It is the tallest of all of the types in the country and without doubt it is the most stunningly beautiful. Every surface of the doorway and the steeply pitched pediment is covered in decoration, chevrons, interlacing and foliage. A bizarre and even barbaric effect is created by the profusion of stone human heads, set in deep sharp triangles in the pediment and lurking menacingly in the arcades over the arch. The little columns of the door jambs have a pronounced batter and the surfaces are pocked and chiselled to a rich texture of patterns.
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Transitional


JERPOINT ABBEY CO. KILKENNY c.1160



THE RUINED monastery at Jerpoint, just south-west of Thomastown, Co. Kilkenny, is the most famous and in many ways the most beautiful of all of the Cistercian sites in Ireland. Architecturally the nave of the church building could be said to demonstrate that the knowledge of the value of the pointed arch for its superior load-carrying capability did not result in a complete change to the Gothic style. The clere-storey windows are still round-headed while the stumpy columns are Romanesque in character. Jerpoint was a daughter house of the Cistercian monastery of Baltinglass, Co. Wicklow, where there was the same arrangement of clere-storey windows over the columns and between the arches. Structurally this would not have been done in a true Gothic design where the piers would have soared high up to carry stone vaults. Since vaulting was only seldom used in these churches, the alternative spacing of window and arch was an acceptable and lively device. Building continued at Jerpoint for at least another 240 years and the great glory there is the sculptured arcade of the cloister built about 1390. The late mediæval carving here is a sumptuous and riotous array of saints, bishops, ladies, knights, animals and grotesque beasts. In this delicious mixture of the sacred and the profane it is easy to believe that the mediæval masons were enjoying themselves and perhaps poking fun at all things grave and dull.
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Gothic


ARDFERT CATHEDRAL CO. KERRY c.1253
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THE GOTHIC style became well established before the middle of the thirteenth century having been introduced by the Cistercians at Grey Abbey on the Ards peninsula, Co. Down, in 1193. The earliest parts of Ardfert Cathedral, eight kilometres north-west of Tralee, are of twelfth-century origin but the main church took shape in the middle of the thirteenth century. The tall triple-lancet window is pure Gothic and the churches are now becoming larger and taller in the spirit of the style. Unlike the Romanesque when the mass of stone walls predominated, here the window openings, particularly with the wide splays inside, seem to take up most of the gable wall. Increased daylight and the possibility of large areas of stained glass were enticing prospects for the mediæval builders. At Grey Abbey the early triple lancets are shorter than at Ardfert, with a second smaller row over the lower group. Five light lancet windows were used in the east wall of the Franciscan friary, also at Ardfert and no less than nine in the south wall of the aisle. A more daring development took place later when the piers between the lancets were whittled away to reduce them to extraordinarily thin stone mullions. A good example of this is the east window of the Franciscan friary at Ennis, Co. Clare.
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Late Gothic


KILCOOLEY ABBEY URLINGFORD CO. KILKENNY MID-15th c.
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THE DEVELOPMENT of Gothic architecture in Ireland may be clearly seen in the evolution of the design of windows over the 200 years or so of the style. Wider windows needed a network of mullions or tracery to support the iron bars which in turn took the weight of the pieces of stained glass. The sheer ingenuity and skill of the stone masons of the Later Gothic in Western Europe created dazzling displays of thin stone tracery, emulating flowing foliage. This progression became known as the Flamboyant and windows in the style began to appear in Ireland in the fifteenth century. The east window of the chancel of Kilcooley Abbey, near Urlingford, Co. Kilkenny, illustrates the art of the Flamboyant in a monastic foundation which had a chequered and sometimes violent history. The Cistercian community was founded in 1184, burnt in 1418 and again burnt and almost totally destroyed in 1445 in an armed attack.


The restored Cistercian abbey at Holycross, Co. Tipperary, has several examples of Flamboyant windows but the most marvellous use of the style is in the tomb in the friary at Strade, south of Foxford, Co. Mayo. As well as the screen of delicate, foliated tracery there is, at the base, a lovely panel of carved figures.
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Residential church


CISTERCIAN CELL CLARE ISLAND CO. MAYO c.1500
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IT WAS not unusual in Early Christian times to have living quarters located over the vaults of some of the little churches or oratories. By the fifteenth century the practice became more common and the Cistercian cell on Clare Island is a good example of the deliberate integration of a residence into the design of a church. This was a simple nave building with a two-storied chancel. The room for the monks was on the upper level, over a simple barrel vault, and a narrow staircase was provided within the thickness of the walls. An interesting feature of the church is the mediæval frescoes, rare in Ireland, which can be seen on the chancel walls. These consist of paintings of human and animal forms but are difficult to see in the dark interior. False ribs were painted on to the underside of the vault, presumably to give an impression of more structural sophistication to the rudimentary barrel shape. The monastic community on this island must have been very isolated since Clare Island is well out in an often stormy ocean. The earliest settlement is said to have been banished by pirates but, unusually, despite the dissolution of the monasteries, monks may have continued to live here until well into the seventeenth century.
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Fortified church


TAGHMON CHURCH CO. WESTMEATH 15th c.



FORTIFIED CHURCHES, as distinct from those which included residential accommodation, are a less frequent type but a few still exist. The late mediæval church of St Munna at Taghmon, about twelve kilometres north of Mullingar and east of the road to Castlepollard, is a product of the turbulent times in the fifteenth century. The tower contained the living quarters and was built shortly after the church was completed. It is identical to the tower-houses which were the favoured residences for landowners and chieftains desiring the security of living on the upper floors of a defensible building. The roof of the Taghmon church is a stone vault and the Irish-type battlements, combined with the marked batter or slope of the walls of both the church and the tower, create a strong impression of a fortress. The church was attacked and plundered by Farrell Macgeoghan in 1452 and was in ruins by 1622. The building was restored in the mid nineteenth century as a Protestant parish church and is now disused and cared for by the State as a National Monument. Another dramatic, castle-like, fortified church survives in what was once the town of Clonmines, Co. Wexford, now a series of ruins.
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FRIARIES, PRIORIES AND ABBEYS





ST PATRICK is reputed to have brought Christianity to Ireland, although there were some Christians here before the patron saint arrived in the middle of the fifth century. In the sixth and seventh centuries monasteries spread and grew rapidly, and today there is hardly a county in Ireland without the remains of at least one Early Christian foundation. The first settlements were built of wood and all have long since vanished. The earliest surviving monasteries consist of small groups of scattered buildings of stone and their layout conforms to no particular pattern or design. Some regions, like the remote and stony landscape of Clare, are particularly richly endowed with ancient sites, but evidence of early monasteries is widespread in almost every county.


The Anglo-Norman invasion of 1169 changed more than the military and political fate of Ireland; its architecture was also to be powerfully and dramatically altered. The great new religious orders of Western Europe – already beginning to reach out to this most westerly part of the continent – flooded into Ireland in advance of the secular invaders in the twelfth century. The Cistercians, the Augustinians, the Fianciscans and the Dominicans were the most dominant of these monastic foundations and with incredible rapidity, beautiful and orderly edifices, of a scale far greater than ever seen before in Ireland, spread throughout the land. These new building types are remarkable for their planning where the central organizing feature was the square or rectangular cloister with open arcades. The church, refectory, kitchen and living quarters were then arranged around the four sides to form a great enclosed complex.


For more than 300 years these monasteries multiplied, were altered and added to, reflecting the march of architectural fashions in the mediæval era from Romanesque to the late flowering of the Gothic style. The beginning of the end was in the reign of King Henry VIII when the slow and painful dissolution of the monasteries started, but it was not until the military juggernaut of Cromwell stormed through the island in the seventeenth century, burning the buildings and smashing the sculpture, that the end finally came. Today the great mediæval friaries and abbeys survive as splendid ruins; a few are in towns, but most of them stand near lakes or rivers, or in peaceful water meadows, romantic and silent.


The Cistercians were the most prolific builders, and of their thirty-three foundations some twenty-one survive in various stages of ruin. Most of the monastic remains are now National Monuments and there are about twenty each of Franciscan and Augustinian, and at least fourteen Dominican, priories and friaries still to be seen. Other Orders have far fewer remains; the Carmelites are represented by priories at Loughrea, Co. Galway, and a fine site at Rathmullan, Co. Donegal. The Benedictines left a magnificent abbey at Fore, Co. Westmeath, and at Shanagolden, Co. Limerick, there is the curiously named Manisternagalliaghduff Abbey – a rare example of a mediæval nunnery.
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Cistercian monastery


DUNBRODY ABBEY CO. WEXFORD 12th c.



THIS IS one of the most impressive monastic ruins in the country. The dominant view is of the great church seen across the fields and overlooking the confluence of the rivers Barrow and Suir. In mediæval times Waterford harbour and the lower reaches of the two rivers were an important waterway. The abbey was founded by the Cistercian Order towards the end of the twelfth century and the church is a good example of early Gothic. The monastery was dissolved by Henry VIII in 1545 and given to Sir Osborne Itchingham. Incongruously, a Tudor manor house was built over the south transept (seen in the drawing on the left of the main church).


One of the most beautiful Cistercian monasteries is Jerpoint (illus. 6) and highly interesting remains are at Baltinglass, Co. Wicklow, Boyle, Co. Roscommon, and at Mellifont, Co. Louth, which was the first Cistercian abbey, founded in 1142. The abbey of Holycross, Co. Tipperary, has been recently restored and some of the finest examples of Late Gothic architecture can be seen here. The chancel of the church is fifteenth century and there is a superb east window and other windows with flamboyant tracery. The glory of Holycross is the ribbed vaulting, particularly over the crossing, which is the most splendid in Ireland.
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Augustinian monastery


ATHASSEL PRIORY CO. TIPPERARY LATE 12th c.



ATHASSEL PRIORY, situated near the village of Golden, south-west of Cashel, was founded by the Augustinians at the end of the twelfth century. It is one of the largest monastic ruins in Ireland, covering an area of about four acres. It was surrounded by a wall, much of which survives, and outside the wall there was once a mediæval town. All traces of the town have vanished but the great monastery is a fine sight on the banks of the river Suir. The church has a sturdy square tower over the junction of the choir and nave. The west doorway of the church, consisting of simple, receding pointed arches, finely cut, is one of the best Gothic doorways in Ireland. As well as being defended by the enclosing wall there was a moat across the meadows, which is now dry, with a stone bridge connecting to a defended gatehouse.


One of the earliest Augustinian priories in Ireland is Ballintubber, Co. Mayo. This was founded in 1216 and suffered the same fate as many of the mediæval monasteries at the destructive hands of the forces of Cromwell in 1653. The church was restored in 1963. The Augustinian convent of Killone, Co. Clare, founded as early as 1190, is notable as one of a handful of ancient convents for nuns in Ireland.




[image: ]











13



Franciscan friary


ADARE CO. LIMERICK 1464



MEDIÆVAL ARCHITECTURE, both secular and religious, is well represented in and around the pleasant village of Adare. The silent, roofless ruins of the Franciscan friary are in many ways the most impressive in this quiet countryside. The friary was founded in 1464 and took two years to build. The tower, tall, slender and noticeably tapering, is characteristic of Franciscan monasteries, compared to the often squat and powerful towers built by the Cistercian Order. Other mediæval buildings nearby are the Augustinian friary of 1325, now the Church of Ireland parish church; the White or “Trinitarian” Monastery of 1275, now the Roman Catholic parish church; the thirteenth-century St Nicholas Church and the thirteenth-century walled castle.


The distinctive towers of the Franciscan friaries are often a prominent feature of the Irish landscape and many of the monasteries still have their towers mostly intact. Good examples of these beautiful towers can be seen at Claregalway and Kilconnell, Co. Galway; Moyne and Rosserk, Co. Mayo; Kilcrea and Timoleague, Co. Cork, and Aherlow, Co. Tipperary. The early fifteenth-century Franciscan friary at Quin, between Ennis and Kilmurray, Co. Clare, is one of the most interesting in the country. The monastery was built on top of a large castle of the late thirteenth century and three of the huge round bastions and parts of the curtain wall were incorporated into the fabric of the friary. Unusually, the monastery survived both the dissolution and Cromwell and continued into the nineteenth century.
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Dominican friary


SLIGO ABBEY 15TH C.



THE DOMINICAN friary in Sligo town was founded in 1253, accidentally burned in 1414 and rebuilt shortly afterwards. The ruined friary today is largely an excellent example of fifteenth-century Gothic architecture. The oldest part of the church is the choir, dating from the thirteenth century. There is a beautiful east window, a finely sculptured altar and a fifteenth-century rood screen which divided the choir from the nave. The illustration shows the splendid cloister arcade dating from the fifteenth century where the slim columns are decorated with delicate carving. The reader’s desk was projected out on to a curving stone corbel. The carved tombs in the church are notable pieces of sculpture. There is a late historic tomb in the church – the O’Conor Sligo monument of 1624 which is Renaissance in style. The friary survived the dissolution in the mid sixteenth century but was finally burned in 1641.


The Dominican friary at Kilmallock, Co. Limerick, has two of the best mediæval windows in the country and, in addition, superb examples of stone carving. The friary in Roscommon is notable for a fifteenth-century tomb which has the carved figures of eight gallowglasses or mercenary soldiers. There are Dominican foundations in the towns of Kilkenny, Youghal and Cashel, and other friaries at Athenry, Co. Galway; Ballindoon, Co. Sligo; Burrishoole and Rathfran, Co. Mayo; Castlelyons, Co. Cork; Lorrha, Co. Tipperary, and Portumna, Co. Galway.
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